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United States District Court
Southern District of Florida

Case No. 1:12-cv-24410-

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau;

State of Hawaii, ex re/ Bruce B. Kim;

State of New Mexico, ex rel. Gary K. King;
State of North Carolina, ex rel. Roy

Cooper; State of North Dakota, ex rel. Wayne
Stenehjem; and State of Wisconsin, ex 7¢/. J.B.
Van Hollen,

Plaintiffs,
V.
Payday Loan Debt Solution, Inc., a
Florida corporation, and Sanjeet Parvani,
president of Payday Loan Debt Solution, Inc.,

Defendants.

/

Complaint for Injunctive Relief and Damages
The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “Bureau”) and the State of
Hawaii, ex rel. Bruce B. Kim, Executive Director, State of Hawaii Office of Consumer
Protection (“Hawaii”); the State of New Mexico, ex e/ Gary K. King, Attorney
General (“New Mexico”); the State of North Carolina, ex e/ Roy Cooper, Attorney
General (“North Carolina”); the State of North Dakota, ex re/ Wayne Stenehjem,
Attorney General (“North Dakota”); and the State of Wisconsin, ex re/. ].B. Van

Hollen, Attorney General (“Wisconsin”) (together, “the States”) allege the following
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against Payday Loan Debt Solution, Inc. (“PLDS”) and Sanjeet Parvani (“Parvani”)

(together, “Defendants”):

Introduction

1. The Bureau brings this action under sections 1031(a), 1036(a), 1054(a),
and 1061 of the Consumer Financial Protection Act of 2010 (“CFPA”), 12 U.S.C. {§
5531(a), 5536(a), 5564(a), 5581, and under the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud
and Abuse Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6102(c)(2), 6105(d), based on Defendants’
violations of the Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), 16 C.F.R. § 310, in connection
with the marketing and sale of debt-relief services. Specifically, the Bureau brings this
action against Defendants based on their violations of 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(a)(5).

2. The States bring this action against Defendants based on their violations
of the state laws enumerated below governing debt adjusting or debt settlement.

(a)  Hawaii brings this action under Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapters 487
and 480, which prohibits unfair or deceptive trade practices, and Chapter 446, which
prohibits debt adjusting,.

(b)  New Mexico brings this action under the New Mexico Unfair Practices
Act, NMSA 1978, §§ 57-12-1 to -26 (1967, as amended through 2009), which
prohibits unfair or deceptive trade practices, including receiving payment for debt-

settlement services prior to making settlement payments.
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(c)  North Carolina brings this action under the North Carolina Unfair and
Deceptive Practices Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 75-1.1, and the North Carolina Debt
Adjusting Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 14-423, ¢/ seq., which prohibits the charging of
advance fees for debt-settlement services.

(d)  North Dakota brings this action under sections 13-11-02, 13-11-21, and
13-11-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, which prohibits debt settlement without
a license and the soliciting and acceptance of advanced fees.

(e)  Wisconsin brings this action pursuant to section 220.04(10) of the
Wisconsin Statutes to enforce and restrain violations of section 218.02 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, which prohibits the provision of a debt-adjustment service
without a license, and violations of Wisconsin Administrative Code Ch. DFI-Bkg. 73,
which prohibits the assessment of a budget set-up fee of more than $25, and the
assessment of monthly fees in excess of the lesser of (i) ten percent of the amount of
money paid to be distributed to a creditor or creditors or (i) $120 in any one calendar

month.

Jurisdiction and Venue
3. This Court has subject-matter jurisdiction over this action because it is
brought under a Federal consumer financial law, 12 U.S.C. § 5565(a)(1), presents a
tederal question, 28 U.S.C. § 1331, and is brought by an agency of the United States,

28 U.S.C. § 1345.
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4. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the States’ claims because
they are “so related to” the Bureau’s federal claims “that they form part of the same
case or controversy.” 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).

5. Venue is proper in this district because PLDS is located, resides, and

does business here, and because Parvani resides and does business here. 28 U.S.C.

§1391(b); 12 U.S.C. § 5564(P).

Parties

0. The Bureau is an agency of the United States created by 12 U.S.C. §
5491(a). It has independent litigating authority, 12 U.S.C. § 5564(a) and (b), including
the authority to enforce the TSR as it applies to persons covered by the CFPA, 15
U.S.C. §§ 6102(c)(2), 6105(d); 12 U.S.C. § 5531(a).

7. The States have authority to bring suits to enforce their state consumer-
protection laws.

8. PLDS is a Florida for-profit corporation that is located, resides, and does
business in this district at 2555 N.W. 102 Avenue, # 206, Doral, Florida 33172. PLDS
provides and offers a consumer financial product or service that is covered by the
CFPA. 12 U.S.C. § 5481(15)(A)(viii)(II). Accordingly, PLDS is a “covered person”
under the CFPA. 12 U.S.C. § 5481(0).

9. Parvani is the president of PLDS. He has managerial responsibility for

PLDS. He approves, ratifies, endorses, directs, controls, and otherwise materially
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participates in the conduct of its affairs. Given his status as an officer or managerial
employee, Parvani is a “related person” under the CFPA. 12 U.S.C. § 5481(25).
Because of his status as a related person, Parvani is deemed a “covered person” for

purposes of the CFPA. Id.

PLDS’s Debt-Relief Services

10.  PLDS was incorporated in 2009. Since then, it has sold or offered to sell
debt-relief services to consumers. PLDS exclusively settles payday-loan debt. In
exchange for a fee, PLDS promises to renegotiate, settle, reduce, or otherwise alter
the terms of at least one debt between a consumer and one or more unsecured
creditors or debt collectors in accordance with a settlement agreement or other
contractual agreement executed by the consumer. PLDS operates its business in
North Dakota and Wisconsin without a license for debt adjusting.

11. PLDS markets its debt-relief services via the Internet at

http://www.pdlds.com. PLDS receives telephone calls from consumers in response
to its Internet marketing efforts.

12.  Since its inception through approximately May 15, 2012, PLDS’s
practice had been to request or receive enrollment fees, processing fees, debt-relief
service fees, or other types of fees in advance of settling at least one of a consumer’s

payday-loan debts.


http://www.pdlds.com/
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13.  PLDS entered into a contract with a payment processor to receive
services for the management, processing, and administration of payments. Under this
contract, the payment processor manages the savings account (“dedicated account”)
of each and every consumer who contracted for debt-relief services from PLDS. Since
its inception, PLDS required and relied on assistance from the payment processor to
collect and disburse monies through the consumer’s dedicated accounts.

14, When consumers enroll in PLDS’s program, PLDS directs them to stop
paying their creditors and, instead, to start making payments into the dedicated
account managed by the payment processor. PLDS also directs consumers who signs
up for its debt-relief services to sign up for the dedicated account with the payment
processor.

15.  PLDS represents to consumers that, if and when a consumer’s dedicated
account reaches a sufficient balance, PLDS would instruct the payment processor to
transmit funds to a consumer’s creditors to help satisfy the consumer’s debts.

16.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, PLDS directed the payment
processor to disburse payment amounts to and from a consumer’s dedicated account.

17.  Consistent with PLDS’s direction, the payment processor: (1) withdrew
funds from a consumer’s bank account through ACH transfer and deposited them
into the dedicated account, and (2) transmitted funds from the dedicated account to
itself and to PLDS to cover processing and servicing fees, including the fee PLDS

charges to consumers for its debt-relief services. The transactions managed by the
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payment processor reflected when funds were routinely transferred out of a
consumer’s account to pay PLDS’s debt-relief fees before payments went to any
creditors. PLDS and the payment processor also directly communicated about
PLDS’s fee structure.

18.  Since PLDS’s inception, consumers deposited more than $1.6 million
into their dedicated accounts and directed the payment processor to make payments
totaling $288,393.62 to creditors in settlement of their debts. Several of PLDS’s
consumers were charged fees, but closed their dedicated accounts before their payday-
loan creditors received any payments in settlement of the consumers’ debts. With
respect to dedicated accounts that were established on or after October 27, 2010, the
effective date of the TSR, and that were closed before creditors received payments for
settlements achieved through PLDS’s debt-relief program, PLDS collected fees

totaling more than $87,243.96.

Parvani’s Debt-Relief Activities
19.  As the president of PLDS, Parvani is an officer of PLDS. Parvani
managed PLDS’s day-to-day operations, including the activities that form the basis for
this Complaint, such as PLDS’s Internet marketing of debt-relief services, PLDS’s
interactions with consumers who signed up for those services, and PLDS’s requesting
and receipt of fees for the services. He also engaged directly in the sale of debt-relief

services and customer-support functions for PLDS.



Case 1:12-cv-24410-JEM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/14/2012 Page 8 of 14

20.  Parvani designed and implemented the front-loaded fee structure
through which PLDS charged advance fees.

21.  Parvani selected and hired the payment processor on PLDS’s behalf.
Since PLDS’s inception, Parvani knew that PLDS routinely charged fees before

settling consumers’ debts.

Count One
(PLDS’s Violations of the TSR and the CFPA)
Asserted by the Bureau

22.  The allegations in paragraphs 1-21 are incorporated here by reference.

23.  In the course of telemarketing debt-relief services from November 2009
to May 2012, PLDS requested or received fees from consumers for debt-relief
services before renegotiating, settling, reducing, or otherwise altering the terms of at
least one of the consumer’s debts. PLDS requested or received payment of these fees
prior to consumers making at least one payment pursuant to any settlement
agreement or other valid contractual agreement between consumers and their
creditors.

24.  PLDS’s acts or practices from October 27, 2010 to May 12, 2012 violate
the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(a)(5)(1), and are unfair acts or practices in telemarketing.

Because PLDS is a “covered person,” its conduct is unlawful under sections 1031(a)

and 1036(a)(1) of the CFPA, 12 U.S.C. §§ 5531(a), 5536(a)(1)(A).
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Count Two
(Parvani’s Violations of the TSR and the CFPA)
Asserted by the Bureau

25.  The allegations in paragraphs 1-21 and 23-24 are incorporated here by
reference.

26.  Parvaniis a “related person” and a “covered person.” 12 U.S.C. §
5481(25). He is liable for violating sections 1031(a) and 1036(a)(1) of the CFPA, 12
U.S.C. §§ 5531(a), 5536(a)(1).

Count Three

(Violations of Hawaii Revised Statutes)
Asserted by Hawaii

27.  The allegations in paragraphs 1-21 are incorporated here by reference.

28.  PLDS engaged in, or offered or attempted to engage in, the business or
practice of debt adjusting in Hawaii.

29.  Defendants’ acts or practices constitute debt adjusting in violation of
Hawaii Revised Statutes § 446-2.

30.  Defendants’ acts or practices also constitute unfair and deceptive
practices in violation of Hawaii Revised Statutes § 480-2.

Count Four
(Violations of New Mexico Unfair Practices Act)

Asserted by New Mexico

31.  The allegations in paragraphs 1-21 are incorporated here by reference.
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32.  PLDS requested or received fees from New Mexico consumers before
renegotiating, settling, reducing, or otherwise altering the terms of at least one of the
consumer’s debts.

33.  PLDS requested or received payment of these fees prior to the
consumer making at least one payment pursuant to any settlement agreement, debt-
management plan, or other valid contractual agreement between the consumer and
the creditors.

34.  Defendants’ acts or practices constitute unfair or deceptive practices
pursuant to the New Mexico Unfair Practices Act, NMSA 1978, §§ 57-12-2(D), 57-
12-3.

Count Five
(Violations of the North Carolina Debt Adjusting Act
and the North Carolina Unfair and Deceptive Practices Act)
Asserted by North Carolina

35.  The allegations in paragraphs 1-21 are incorporated here by reference.

36.  PLDS engaged in, or offered or attempted to engage in, the business or
practice of charging advance fees for debt adjusting in North Carolina.

37.  Defendants’ acts or practices violate section 14-424 of the North

Carolina Debt Adjusting Act, which also constitute violations of the North Carolina

Unfair and Deceptive Practices Act. N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 14-425, 75-1.1.
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Count Six
(Violations of the North Dakota Century Code)
Asserted by North Dakota

38.  The allegations in paragraphs 1-21 are incorporated here by reference.

39.  PLDS has acted as a debt-settlement provider in North Dakota without
first having obtained a license. PLDS also charged or collected fees in violation of
section 13-11-21 of the North Dakota Century Code.

40.  Defendants’ acts or practices violate sections 13-11-02 and 13-11-21 of
the North Dakota Century Code.

Count Seven
(Violations of the Wisconsin Statutes and Wisconsin Administrative Code)
Asserted by Wisconsin

41.  The allegations in paragraphs 1-21 are incorporated here by reference.

42.  PLDS has acted as an adjustment service company in Wisconsin without
tirst having obtained a license. PLDS also assessed fees for adjustment services in
excess of $25 for a budget set-up fee, and in excess of the lesser of (i) ten percent of
the amount of money paid to be distributed to a creditor or creditors or (i) $120 in
any one calendar month.

43.  Defendants’ acts or practices violate section 218.02 of the Wisconsin

Statutes and the Wisconsin Administrative Code Ch. DFI-Bkg. 73.

Demand for Relief

Wherefore, the Bureau and the States request that the Court:

11



Case 1:12-cv-24410-JEM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/14/2012 Page 12 of 14

1.

permanently enjoin Defendants from committing future violations of the

CFPA, 12 U.S.C. §§ 5531, 5536, the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310 ¢/ seq., Hawaii Revised

Statutes Chapters 480 and 446, the New Mexico Unfair Practices Act, NMSA 1978, §

57-12-3 et seq., the North Carolina Debt Adjusting Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 14-423, ¢

seq., the North Carolina Unfair and Deceptive Practices Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 75-1.1,

the North Dakota Century Code, N.D.C.C. ch. 13-11, the Wisconsin Statutes, Wisc.

Stat. § 218.02, and the Wisconsin Administrative Code, Wisc. Admin. Code Ch. DFI-

Bke. 73;

2.

award restitution against Defendants in the amount of all unlawfully

collected fees;

3.

4.

order disgorgement of ill-gotten profits against Defendants;
award civil money penalties against Defendants;
award attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants; and

award additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper.

12



Case 1:12-cv-24410-JEM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/14/2012 Page 13 of 14

Dated: December 14, 2012

Lisa Tong *

State of Hawaii Office of Consumer
Protection

235 S. Beretania Street #801
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
Telephone: (808) 586-2636
Facsimile: (808) 586-2640

e-mail: ltong(@dcca.hawaii.gov
Attorney for Plaintiff State of Hawaii, ex rel.
Bruce B. Kim

M. Lynne Weaver *

Consumer Protection Division

North Carolina Department of Justice
P.O. Box 629

114 W. Edenton St.

Raleigh, NC 27602

Telephone: (919) 716-6000

Facsimile: (919) 716-6050

e-mail: lweaver@ncdoj.gov

Attorney for Plaintiff State of North Carolina,
ex rel. Roy Cooper

Lara Sutherlin *

Consumer Protection Unit

Office of the Attorney General of
Wisconsin

17 West Main Street

P.O. Box 7857

Madison, Wisconsin 53707-7857
Telephone: (608)267-7163
Facsimile: (608) 267-2778

e-mail: sutherlinlag@doj.state.wi.us

Attorney for Plaintiff State of Wisconsin, ex rel.

J.B. Van Hollen

Respectfully submitted,

Kent Markus
Enforcement Director

Anthony Alexis
Deputy Enforcement Director for Field Litigation

Jettrey Paul Ehrlich
Assistant Litigation Deputy for Field 1 itigation

s/ .H. Jennifer Lee

J.H. Jennifer Lee (FL Bar No. A5501824)
Meredith Osborn

Enforcement Attorneys

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
1700 G Street, NW

Washington, DC 20552

Telephone: (202) 435-7943

Facsimile: (202) 435-7722

e-mail: jenny.lee@cfpb.gov

Attorneys for Plaintiff Consumer Financial
Protection Burean

Elin S. Alm *

Consumer Protection Division

Office of the Attorney General of North
Dakota

Gateway Professional Center

1050 E. Interstate Ave., Suite 200
Bismarck, ND 58503-5574

Telephone: (701) 328-5570

Facsimile: (701) 328-5568

e-mail: ealm@nd.gov

Attorney for Plaintiff State of North Dakota, ex
rel. Wayne Stenebjem
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John Thompson * * Motion to appear pro hac vice
New Mexico Attorney General’s forthcoming.

Consumer Protection Division

111 Lomas NW, Suite 120
Albuquerque, NM 87102

Telephone: (505) 222-9123

Facsimile: (505) 222-9033

e-mail: jthompson@nmag.gov

Attorney for Plaintiff State of New Mexico, ex
rel. Gary K. King
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